
Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Executive Committee Agenda 
Tuesday, December 5, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86524833841?pwd=Y3o2citnU3djWXVuMHI1NEpZRlYrdz09 

Meeting ID: 865 2483 3841  Passcode: 526664  
One tap mobile: 16469313860,,86524833841# 

Call to Order Dennis Duke 
Roll Call Tyler Lanz 
*Consent Agenda Dennis Duke 

Excused Absences  
Approval of Agenda   
Approval of Previous Minutes 

New Business 
*MOU Dispute Resolution Process (Page 5) Mandy Tripp 
*MOU Amendment/Modification Process (Page 7) Mandy Tripp 
*MOU Termination Process (Page 10) Mandy Tripp 
Meal Per Diem (Page 13) Miranda Swafford 
Q1 Performance (Page 15) Mandy Tripp 
PY24/25 Performance Levels (Page 17) Miranda Swafford 
Hired & Non-Owned Auto Coverage (Page 19) Dennis Duke 

Other Business   
Public Comment 
Adjourn Dennis Duke 

*Items Requiring a Vote ** Items Requiring a Roll Call Vote

Accommodations 
Accommodation is available upon request for individuals with disabilities. If you need accommodation, please 
contact Mandy Tripp at mandy@mississippivalleyworkforce.org or at 1-844-967-5365 option 3. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86524833841?pwd=Y3o2citnU3djWXVuMHI1NEpZRlYrdz09
mailto:mandy@mississippivalleyworkforce.org


Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Executive Committee 
Meeting Minutes  

Tuesday, October 17, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. 

Members Present: Dennis Duke, Ryan Drew, Jacob Nye, Cindy Whalen, and Kirby Phillips 
Members Absent: Mandy Parchert (excused), Matthew Nicol (excused) 
CEOs Present: Jim Irwin 
Staff Present: Miranda Swafford, Executive Director and Tyler Lanz, Communications Assistant 
Guest: Shannon Weaver, Operations Manager 

CALLED TO ORDER 
Duke called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  

QUORUM 
The committee had a quorum to conduct business. 

*CONSENT AGENDA
The consent agenda included approval of the agenda, approval of previous meeting minutes, and
approval of Nicol and Parchert’s excused absences. Phillips made a motion to approve the
consent agenda, seconded by Whalen, and the motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS 

*TRANSFER REQUEST
Swafford presented the request to transfer $50,000 from the Dislocated Worker program to Adult
in order to support the continuation of Adult services. Weaver advised the Adult program is not
taking on any new obligations, however the transfer is needed to fulfill their current work-based
learning contracts. The state has advised that we will likely not receive FY24 funding until after
the federal government comes to a resolution and that amounts are not set in stone so they may
decrease. The state also advised that there is some additional Dislocated Worker funding that will
be re-allocated among the local areas, however we do not have an exact time frame for when that
will happen. There was a discussion about what advocacy is being done to encourage federal
legislators to reach a resolution and make them aware of the impacts on local jobseekers,
workforce staff, and businesses. Nye made a motion to approve the transfer request of $50,000
from Dislocated Worker to Adult, seconded by Phillips, and the motion carried.

OTHER BUSINESS 
Swafford advised that registration for the annual board training is open and encouraged 
committee members to complete the form. 



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board Page 2 of 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
There was no public comment. 

*ADJOURN
Nye made a motion to adjourn, and the motion carried. Duke adjourned the meeting at 4:19 p.m.



*MOU Attachment H: 
Dispute Resolution Process
Documents Included: Draft attachment
Action Requested: Approve the attachment



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board  

Mississippi Valley Workforce Area  
Memorandum of Understanding 55 

Attachment H: Dispute Resolution Process Remove  

IowaWORKS System Partners 
Dispute Resolution Process 

The following section outlines the WIOA dispute resolution process established for System
Partners when they are unable to achieve an agreement essential for executing the MOU. (Please 
note that this process is distinct from the MVWDB Customer Grievance and Complaint Policy.) 
A dispute is considered to have reached the dispute resolution stage when an issue emerges 
during the development and negotiation of this MOU, and a satisfactory resolution is not readily 
attainable. It is the responsibility of the MVWDB Chair (or their representative) to oversee the 
MOU dispute resolution process to ensure the proper resolution of issues. Any party involved in 
the MOU may seek resolution through this procedure. 

Good Faith Negotiations: All Parties are encouraged to actively engage in local negotiations 
with a sincere intention of reaching an agreement. In the event of a dispute, the first step is to 
attempt an informal resolution. 

Local Formal Resolution Process 
1. : If efforts at informal resolution prove unsuccessful, the formal dispute resolution

process must be initiated by the party seeking resolution. The petitioner must send a
notification regarding the conflict to the MVWDB Chair (or their designee) and all
Parties to the MOU within 10 business days.

2. The MVWDB Chair (or their designee) will schedule a special meeting of the MVWDB
Executive Committee within 20 business days to address the dispute. The Executive
Committee will strive to mediate and resolve the dispute, with resolutions determined by
a majority consensus of the present Executive Committee members.

3. The Executive Committee must furnish a written response and a dated summary of the
proposed resolution to all Parties to the MOU within 10 days of reaching a decision.

4. The MVWDB Chair (or their designee) will contact the petitioner and the relevant Parties
to confirm that all parties agree with the proposed resolution.

5. The decision of the Executive Committee will be considered final unless the petitioner
decides to pursue further action through the state dispute resolution process.

State Dispute Resolution Process: 
If local attempts to resolve the dispute are unsuccessful, the agency with the dispute must notify 
Iowa Workforce Development (IWD), which serves as the convener of the core partner team 
responsible for seeking resolution to the dispute. The agency with the dispute should send an 
email to WIOAgovernance@iwd.iowa.gov and follow these steps: 

mailto:WIOAgovernance@iwd.iowa.gov


Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board  

Mississippi Valley Workforce Area  
Memorandum of Understanding 56 

1. Subject line of email: MOU Dispute Resolution: [Insert name of LWDA].
2. In the body of the email or in a clearly identifiable attachment, clearly state the issue in

dispute and provide as much detail as possible.
3. Attach the local Dispute Resolution Process documentation, along with evidence of its

adherence.
Upon receiving the Dispute Resolution email, IWD will: 

1. Acknowledge the receipt of the email.
2. Provide all documentation to the WIOA core partner working group.
3. The core partner team will review the dispute and notify the relevant Parties of its

decision within 14 days of receiving the dispute.
4. If the agency with the dispute is not satisfied with the core partner team's decision, they

may appeal to the State Workforce Development Board (SWDB). However, it's important
to note that no local dispute may directly proceed to the SWDB without first being
addressed by the core partner team.



*MOU Attachment I: Amendment 
and Modification Process
Documents Included: Draft attachment
Action Requested: Approve the attachment 



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board  

Mississippi Valley Workforce Area  
Memorandum of Understanding 57 

Attachment I: Amendment/ Modification Process 

IowaWORKS System Partners 
Amendment/Modification Process 

Note: Amendments or modifications may only be proposed by partner program signatories.  

Amendment: An amendment, which is adding new information, would only require the parties 
to review and agree to the new information added to the MOU. 

Modification: A modification is making a change to existing information. Changes that trigger 
the MOU modification process include but are not limited to:  

• A change of IowaWORKS center One Stop Operator, the administrative structure, or the
physical location of an IowaWORKS center.

• A change that significantly alters negotiated terms to this MOU—including, but not
limited to—changes in shared services, service delivery, referral methods, costs or cost
sharing.

• A partner’s appeal to the State regarding infrastructure costs that results in a change to
the one-stop partner’s infrastructure cost contributions.

• Any other change that will impact shared costs, which does not include updates to the
budget as a result of reconciliation.

All parties agree that modifications involving changes with no impact on shared services, cost-
sharing, or other negotiated terms need only be signed by authorized representatives of the 
MVWDB, the CLEO, and the affected partner(s). All other modifications will require the 
signatures of all parties. 

Renewal  
A renewal is an overall review and re-do of the MOU. Substantial changes, such as changes in 
partners or a change in CLEO will require renewal.  A renewal would require a review and 
approval of the entire MOU by all parties. 

Process 
1. The party seeking an amendment or modification will submit a written request to the

MVWDB that includes:
a. The requesting party’s name.
b. The reason(s) for the amendment or modification request.
c. Clearly detailed additions or sections identified for modification.
d. The desired date for the amendment or modification to become effective.
e. The signature of the requesting party’s authorized representative.

2. If the request is approved, the MVWDB will notify the remaining partners of the intent to
amend or modify, and will allow 30 days from the date of the notice (unless another



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board  

Mississippi Valley Workforce Area  
Memorandum of Understanding 58 

timeframe is specified in the notice) for the remaining partners to review the requested 
changes and to submit a response to the MVWDB. No response by a partner will be 
considered approval of the requested changes. 

3. Any partner with questions and/or concerns regarding the requested changes or additions
must be submitted to the MVWDB in writing within the specified timeframe.

4. The MVWDB will provide a written response to the partner within 15 days of receipt of
the partner’s questions. The MVWDB will have the discretion to share questions/concerns
with other partners and/or to schedule a meeting to achieve consensus on a final draft.

5. The final, approved amendment or modification draft will be signed by authorized
representatives of the affected partners, then submitted to the MVWDB for the final
signature unless it is an amendment or modification that requires the signatures of all
parties, in which case, MVWDB must secure all local signatures

6. The amendment or modification may be signed in counterparts, meaning each signatory
can sign a separate document as long as the MVWDB Chair (or designee) acquires
signatures of each party and provides a complete copy of the amendment or modification
with each partner’s signature to all the other Parties.

7. The MVWDB will distribute copies of the fully executed amendment or modification to
all parties and IWD.

Note:  If the modification involves substitution of a party that will not impact any of the terms of 
the agreement, it can be accomplished by the original party and the new party entering into an 
MOU that includes the MVWDB wherein the new party assumes all of the rights and obligations 
of the original party. Upon execution, the MVWDB Chair (or designee) presents the agreement 
as a proposed modification to the MOU, and the remaining steps are followed. If determined that 
a Partner is unwilling to agree to the MOU modification, the MVWDB Chair (or designee) must 
ensure that the process in the Dispute Resolution section of the MOU is followed.  

Additional Terms 
• This writing is the entire agreement among the parties with respect to each party’s role and

responsibilities in the local workforce development system. All parties agree that any
amendments to applicable laws or regulations cited herein will result in the correlative
modification of this MOU without a formal, written amendment.

• All parties agree to communicate details of any amendments or modifications to their
respective staff members whose responsibilities may be impacted by the changes and
further agree to ensure that their staff members are referencing or utilizing the most current
version of the MOU in the performance of their responsibilities.

• Amendments or modifications that will require the signatures of all parties must be
executed no later than 90 days prior to the end of the MOU period. Amendments or
modifications that require only the signatures of the MVWDB, the CLEO, and the affected
partner(s) must be executed no later than 45 days from the end of the current State Fiscal
Year to allow time for Purchase Order modifications.



*MOU Attachment J: 
Termination Process
Documents Included: Draft attachment
Action Requested: Approve the attachment



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board  

Mississippi Valley Workforce Area  
Memorandum of Understanding 59 

Attachment J: Termination Process 

IowaWORKS System Partners 
Termination Process 

MOU Termination 
This MOU will remain in effect until the end date specified in this MOU effective date section, 
unless: 

1. All parties mutually agree to terminate this MOU.
2. Federal oversight agencies responsible for WIOA administration are unable to

appropriate funds, or if funds are not otherwise made available for continued
performance for any fiscal period succeeding the first fiscal period of this MOU. Any
party unable to perform due to lack of funding shall promptly notify the other parties.

3. WIOA and the corresponding regulations are repealed; or
4. LWA designations are changed.

Non-Required Partner Separation 
Any non-required partner may terminate its participation as a party to this MOU upon 60 days 
written notice to the MVWDB. In such an event:  

1. MVWDB will provide written notice to all remaining partners and to IWD.
2. The MVWDB will review the budget to determine where adjustments can be made that

will prevent an increase in the remaining partners’ shared cost amounts.
3. The MVWDB will amend this MOU per Attachment I Amendment and Modification

Process and the MVWDB will prepare a revised budget document.
4. All parties must agree to the revised budget or reconvene to negotiate a new budget

within 60 days of the date notice was received from the separating partner.
5. Only individuals with signatory authority may authorize or request the termination of this

MOU.
Any non-required partner that terminates its role as a party to this MOU is no longer eligible to 
participate as a partner in the local workforce development system. However, referrals may be 
made between the terminating partner and the remaining parties as necessary to ensure customers 
receive all available services needed. 

Required Partners  
Each required partner understands that participation as a party to this MOU is required under 
WIOA Section 121(b)(1)(A)(III) and any required partner that opts to terminate its participation 
as a party to this MOU: 

1. Is still obligated as a required partner to provide access to program activities and services
through a comprehensive IowaWORKS Center.

2. Will be subject to and will cause all other required local partners to be subject to, the state
infrastructure funding mechanism.



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board  

Mississippi Valley Workforce Area  
Memorandum of Understanding 60 

3. Will be required to pay its proportionate share of infrastructure costs as determined under
the state infrastructure funding mechanism.

4. Must be reported to Iowa Workforce Development (IWD) and to the state agency that
administers the partner program, as applicable. For required partners that receive program
funds directly from the DOL, the DOL will be notified.

5. May be subject to sanctions by the state and/or federal agency that administers the partner
program.

6. Must make best efforts to find another entity that will fulfill the required partner role
and/or will make recommendations to the MVWDB on budget adjustments or other
means to defray a cost increase to the remaining partners.

7. Will send written notice of the intent to separate to IWD and to the state agency that
administers the partner program, as applicable, prior to submitting written notice of the
separation to the MVWDB. Required partners that receive funds directly from DOL must
send written notice to the DOL Grant Officer assigned to the partner in addition to IWD.

8. Only individuals with signatory authority may authorize or request the termination of this
MOU.

Formation of Successor MOU: 
In the event of termination, the parties to the MOU must convene within thirty (30) days after the 
MOU's breach to discuss the formation of a successor MOU. During this discussion, allocated 
costs must be addressed. 

Amendment Process: 
Any party may request to terminate its inclusion in this MOU by following the amendment 
process identified in the Amendment Attachment first. 

Periodic Review and Renewal: 
All parties agree that this MOU shall be reviewed annually and renewed not less than once every 
three-year period to ensure appropriate funding and delivery of services. 



Meals Per Diem

Reason: Review current 
meal expenditure policy 
for any needed changes.



MVWA Travel Policy Page 3 of 7 

H. Meals

1. The costs of meals and refreshments are allowable with conditions. However, in accordance
with the authorities cited above, costs can be incurred only when necessary and reasonable for
the proper and efficient performance and administration of a grant award. While the
allowability of such costs is determined on a case-by case basis, it is important to consider:
a. The reasonableness of the aggregate costs to demonstrate that Boards have acted with due

prudence in circumstances, considering their responsibilities to the government unit, its
employees, the public at large, and state or Federal Government.

b. Aggregate costs periodically-e.g., over a 12-month period will be reviewed to identify
needed changes to the policies in order to avoid incurring individual and aggregate costs
that appear excessive or lavish.

c. Tips are allowable up to 20%.
d. No alcoholic beverages are permitted.
e. All meal receipts must be itemized.
f. Reasonableness of the cost of meals will be determined by comparing to the allowable

GSA per diem rate for the specific area.
2. Examples of when a reasonable need arises to incur such costs include, but are not limited to,

the following:
a. Allowable costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences where the

primary purpose is the dissemination of technical information.
b. Costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences are allowable when the

grantee incurs such costs in the process of conducting meetings or conferences with
external customers and other professional colleagues outside of the entity’s organization.

c. The cost of a “working lunch” with external customers and other colleagues is considered
“reasonable and necessary” when there is adequate documentation on the reason of having
the meeting during mealtime hours.



Q1 Performance 



PY22 PY23
Indicator Required Annual Required Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Employment 2nd Qtr 72.5% 81.9% 73.0% 82.1%
Employment 4th Qtr 66.0% 75.9% 67.0% 74.7%
Median Earnings 2nd Qtr $6,100 $6,528 $6,100 $6,615
Credential Attainment 65.0% 79.5% 66.0% 75.0%
Measurable Skills Gain 44.0% 72.7% 44.0% 65.9%

PY22 PY23
Indicator Required Annual Required Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Employment 2nd Qtr 85.0% 81.0% 85.0% 83.1%
Employment 4th Qtr 85.0% 81.3% 85.0% 78.6%
Median Earnings 2nd Qtr $8,900 $9,327 $9,000 $9,434
Credential Attainment 69.0% 78.8% 69.5% 67.6%
Measurable Skills Gain 44.0% 78.7% 44.0% 78.9%

PY22 PY23
Indicator Required Annual Required Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Employment 2nd Qtr 73.0% 73.5% 74.0% 70.8%
Employment 4th Qtr 72.0% 67.2% 74.0% 67.6%
Median Earnings 2nd Qtr $3,700 $3,275.0 $3,800.00 $3,940
Credential Attainment 52.0% 43.3% 57.0% 63.6%
Measurable Skills Gain 35.0% 48.2% 36.0% 55.0%

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 
Employment Rate Second Quarter After Ex10/01/21 to 9/30/22 1/01/22 to 12/31/22 4/01/22 to 3/31/23 7/01/22 to 6/30/23
Employment Rate Fourth Quarter After Exi4/01/21 to 3/31/22 7/01/21 to 6/30/22 10/01/21 to 9/30/221/01/22 to 12/31/22
Median Earnings Second Quarter After Exi  10/01/21 to 9/30/22 1/01/22 to 12/31/22 4/01/22 to 3/31/23 7/01/22 to 6/30/23
Credential Attainment Rate 4/01/21 to 3/31/22 7/01/21 to 6/30/22 10/01/21 to 9/30/221/01/22 to 12/31/22
Measurable Skill Gains 10/01/22 to 9/30/23 1/01/23 to 12/31/23 4/01/23 to 3/31/24 7/01/23 to 6/30/24

MVWA Performance Data 

Adult Program 

Dislocated Worker

Youth 

Program Year 2023 Quarterly Timeframes to be Reported



PY 24/25 Performance

Reason: Performance levels must be proposed in 
the local plan to start the negotiations with the state 
for the upcoming program years.



PY21 PY22 PY23 Py24 PY25
Indicator Required Actual Required Actual Required Q1 Required Required 

Employment 2nd Qtr 73.0% 84.2% 72.5% 81.9% 73.0% 82.10%
Employment 4th Qtr 70.0% 83.3% 66.0% 75.9% 67.0% 74.70%
Median Earnings 2nd Qtr $5,400 $6,775 $6,100 $6,528 $6,100 56.61%
Credential Attainment 67.0% 78.9% 65.0% 79.5% 66.0% 75.00%
Measurable Skills Gain 44.0% 56.3% 44.0% 72.7% 44.0% 65.90%

PY21 PY22 PY23 Py24 PY25
Indicator Required Actual Required Annual Required Q1 Required Required 

Employment 2nd Qtr 85.0% 86.0% 85.0% 81.0% 85.0% 83.10%
Employment 4th Qtr 83.0% 94.1% 85.0% 81.3% 85.0% 78.60%
Median Earnings 2nd Qtr $8,400 $8,633 $8,900 $9,327 $9,000 $9,434.00
Credential Attainment 68.0% 73.3% 69.0% 78.8% 69.5% 67.60%
Measurable Skills Gain 31.0% 63.5% 44.0% 78.7% 44.0% 78.90%

PY21 PY22 PY23 Py24 PY25
Indicator Required Actual Required Actual Required Q1 Required Required 

Employment 2nd Qtr 73.0% 73.3% 73.0% 73.5% 74.0% 70.80%
Employment 4th Qtr 72.0% 93.8% 73.0% 67.2% 74.0% 67.60%
Median Earnings 2nd Qtr $3,600 $4,016.0 $3,700 $3,275 $3,800.00 $3,940.00
Credential Attainment 59.0% 40.0% 52.0% 43.3% 57.0% 63.60%
Measurable Skills Gain 41.0% 21.4% 35.0% 48.2% 36.0% 55.00%

Youth 

Proposed Negotiated 
Levels for Local Plan 

Each local area must submit an expected level of performance for each of the primary indicators of performance for the first two years covered by the plan. The 
Local Area is required to reach agreement with the State on local-negotiated levels of performance for the indicators for each of the first two years of the plan.   

Local Plan Performance Requirement 

Adult Program 

Dislocated Worker



Hired & Non-Owned Auto 
Coverage








	ADP12EA.tmp
	IowaWORKS System Operations
	Introduction
	Purpose

	IowaWORKS System Structure
	Service Design
	Roles and Responsibilities
	Chief Lead Elected Official (CLEO)0F
	Local Workforce Development Board1F
	One Stop Operator2F
	IowaWORKS Partners3F

	Required Partner Services
	Methods for providing access to each of the required services:
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Training Services
	Follow up Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services


	Referrals
	Accessibility
	Outreach
	Data Sharing
	Monitoring
	Dispute Resolution

	Terms and Conditions
	Confidentiality
	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	Indemnification
	Severability
	Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
	Certification Regarding Lobbying
	Debarment and Suspension
	Priority of Service
	Buy American Provision
	Salary, Compensation, and Bonus Limitations
	Non- Assignment
	Governing Law
	Amendment/ Modification
	Termination
	Effective Period

	One-Stop Operating Budget
	One-Stop Operating Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Allocation Bases per Cost Item
	Partner Contribution Amounts
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update

	Infrastructure Funding Agreement
	Partners
	Infrastructure Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update
	Steps to Reach Consensus
	Notification of Partners
	Kickoff Meeting
	Negotiations
	Draft MOU
	Review and Comment
	Finalized Draft

	Dispute and Impasse Resolution
	Step 1: Notice of failure to reach consensus given to Governor.
	Step 2: Negotiation materials provided to Governor.
	Step 3: Governor Determinations and Calculations
	Step 4: IFA Execution

	Amendment/Modification Process
	Effective Period

	MOU and IFA Attachments
	Attachment A-1: IowaWORKS Office Locations
	Attachment A-2: Partners’ Other Locations in the MVWA
	Attachment B: Partners/ Parties to this Agreement
	Attachment C: Partner Services List
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Follow Up Services
	Training Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services

	Attachment C-1: Career Services
	Attachment C-2: Training Services
	Attachment C-3: Youth Services
	Attachment C-4: Business Services
	Attachment C-5: Services not in Comprehensive or Affiliate Locations
	Attachment D: Referral Process
	Attachment E: Accessibility Plan
	Attachment F: Outreach Plan
	Attachment G: Data Sharing Training Plan
	Attachment H: Dispute Resolution Process Remove
	Attachment I: Amendment/ Modification Process
	Attachment J: Termination Process
	Attachment K: Business Services Plan
	Attachment L: Negotiations/ Meeting Summary
	Attachment M: IFA Analysis Excel Document

	Signature Page
	Definitions

	ADP13C4.tmp
	IowaWORKS System Operations
	Introduction
	Purpose

	IowaWORKS System Structure
	Service Design
	Roles and Responsibilities
	Chief Lead Elected Official (CLEO)0F
	Local Workforce Development Board1F
	One Stop Operator2F
	IowaWORKS Partners3F

	Required Partner Services
	Methods for providing access to each of the required services:
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Training Services
	Follow up Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services


	Referrals
	Accessibility
	Outreach
	Data Sharing
	Monitoring
	Dispute Resolution

	Terms and Conditions
	Confidentiality
	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	Indemnification
	Severability
	Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
	Certification Regarding Lobbying
	Debarment and Suspension
	Priority of Service
	Buy American Provision
	Salary, Compensation, and Bonus Limitations
	Non- Assignment
	Governing Law
	Amendment/ Modification
	Termination
	Effective Period

	One-Stop Operating Budget
	One-Stop Operating Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Allocation Bases per Cost Item
	Partner Contribution Amounts
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update

	Infrastructure Funding Agreement
	Partners
	Infrastructure Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update
	Steps to Reach Consensus
	Notification of Partners
	Kickoff Meeting
	Negotiations
	Draft MOU
	Review and Comment
	Finalized Draft

	Dispute and Impasse Resolution
	Step 1: Notice of failure to reach consensus given to Governor.
	Step 2: Negotiation materials provided to Governor.
	Step 3: Governor Determinations and Calculations
	Step 4: IFA Execution

	Amendment/Modification Process
	Effective Period

	MOU and IFA Attachments
	Attachment A-1: IowaWORKS Office Locations
	Attachment A-2: Partners’ Other Locations in the MVWA
	Attachment B: Partners/ Parties to this Agreement
	Attachment C: Partner Services List
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Follow Up Services
	Training Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services

	Attachment C-1: Career Services
	Attachment C-2: Training Services
	Attachment C-3: Youth Services
	Attachment C-4: Business Services
	Attachment C-5: Services not in Comprehensive or Affiliate Locations
	Attachment D: Referral Process
	Attachment E: Accessibility Plan
	Attachment F: Outreach Plan
	Attachment G: Data Sharing Training Plan
	Attachment H: Dispute Resolution Process Remove
	Attachment I: Amendment/ Modification Process
	Attachment J: Termination Process
	Attachment K: Business Services Plan
	Attachment L: Negotiations/ Meeting Summary
	Attachment M: IFA Analysis Excel Document

	Signature Page
	Definitions

	ADP882C.tmp
	IowaWORKS System Operations
	Introduction
	Purpose

	IowaWORKS System Structure
	Service Design
	Roles and Responsibilities
	Chief Lead Elected Official (CLEO)0F
	Local Workforce Development Board1F
	One Stop Operator2F
	IowaWORKS Partners3F

	Required Partner Services
	Methods for providing access to each of the required services:
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Training Services
	Follow up Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services


	Referrals
	Accessibility
	Outreach
	Data Sharing
	Monitoring
	Dispute Resolution

	Terms and Conditions
	Confidentiality
	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	Indemnification
	Severability
	Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
	Certification Regarding Lobbying
	Debarment and Suspension
	Priority of Service
	Buy American Provision
	Salary, Compensation, and Bonus Limitations
	Non- Assignment
	Governing Law
	Amendment/ Modification
	Termination
	Effective Period

	One-Stop Operating Budget
	One-Stop Operating Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Allocation Bases per Cost Item
	Partner Contribution Amounts
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update

	Infrastructure Funding Agreement
	Partners
	Infrastructure Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update
	Steps to Reach Consensus
	Notification of Partners
	Kickoff Meeting
	Negotiations
	Draft MOU
	Review and Comment
	Finalized Draft

	Dispute and Impasse Resolution
	Step 1: Notice of failure to reach consensus given to Governor.
	Step 2: Negotiation materials provided to Governor.
	Step 3: Governor Determinations and Calculations
	Step 4: IFA Execution

	Amendment/Modification Process
	Effective Period

	MOU and IFA Attachments
	Attachment A-1: IowaWORKS Office Locations
	Attachment A-2: Partners’ Other Locations in the MVWA
	Attachment B: Partners/ Parties to this Agreement
	Attachment C: Partner Services List
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Follow Up Services
	Training Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services

	Attachment C-1: Career Services
	Attachment C-2: Training Services
	Attachment C-3: Youth Services
	Attachment C-4: Business Services
	Attachment C-5: Services not in Comprehensive or Affiliate Locations
	Attachment D: Referral Process
	Attachment E: Accessibility Plan
	Attachment F: Outreach Plan
	Attachment G: Data Sharing Training Plan
	Attachment H: Dispute Resolution Process Remove
	Attachment I: Amendment/ Modification Process
	Attachment J: Termination Process
	Attachment K: Business Services Plan
	Attachment L: Negotiations/ Meeting Summary
	Attachment M: IFA Analysis Excel Document

	Signature Page
	Definitions

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	MVWDB Travel Policy 2022.08.01.pdf
	A. Purpose
	1. Establish a travel policy for reimbursement of expenditures incurred in the performance of duties responsibilities that directly support the mission of the Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board (MVWDB). MVWDB stakeholders covered by this p...

	B. Background
	1. The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) allows reimbursement of travel costs incurred in the performance of administrative and program functions. Reasonable travel costs necessary to effectively manage the grant, provide oversight, and ...

	C. Policy
	1. It is the policy of the MVWDB to reimburse representatives for travel expenses incurred in the performance of duties under WIOA. Such reimbursement must meet requirements outlined in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).

	D. Guiding Principles
	1. Reimbursement for travel is authorized for official MVWDB and nonprofit corporation business within the budgetary limits established in the annual budget.
	2. Written permission must be obtained from executive director or board chair prior to travel unless specifically related to normally scheduled board, committee, CEO meetings, trainings, or routine MVWDB business within the Local Area.
	3. A travel expense form must be completed by anyone requesting reimbursement.
	4. CEOs can only request reimbursement when travel is outside the state of Iowa.
	5. The completed form should be submitted to the MVWDB executive director or their designee for approval and processing. Expense forms should be submitted no less frequently than monthly. Additionally, all expenses are reviewed by the fiscal agent pri...
	6. The executive director’s expenses for travel outside the Mississippi Valley Workforce Area (MVWA) will be approved by the board chair prior to submittal to the fiscal agent for processing.
	7. No reimbursement will be provided if the traveler receives reimbursement through other sources, double dipping is prohibited and subject to criminal and civil action to recover expenses.
	8. All incurred expenses must be supported by adequate documentation. (Conference or meeting agendas, invoices, hotel bills, receipts, etc.) See 2 CFR Part 225.
	9. Guard against questionable costs by using the “reasonable costs” as the standard for spending. (avoid extravagant meals/hotels for example).
	10. The MVWDB is a fiscal recipient and is the custodian of federal funds, which must be safeguarded and used only for legitimate purposes to perform responsibilities that directly support the mission of the board.
	11. “Reasonable costs. A cost is reasonable if, in its nature and amount, it does not exceed that which would be incurred by a prudent person under the circumstances prevailing at the time the decision was made to incur the cost.” 2 CFR Part 225 Appen...

	E. Mode of Travel
	1. MVWDB representatives are expected to select a mode of transportation, which is least expensive, taking into consideration both time and distance involved.
	2. A receipt will be required for travel by common carrier such as air, rail, or bus. Reimbursements will be for actual costs incurred.
	3. Air travel reservations should be made as far in advance as possible in order to take advantage of reduced fares.
	4. Only the cost of the lowest coach class fare available for direct, non-stop flights from the airport nearest the representative’s home or office to the airport nearest the destination will be allowed.
	5. One checked bag each way for a roundtrip fare is an allowable cost as well as the cost of a carry-on bag.
	6. The use of rental cars should only be used under very specific circumstances and must have prior written approval from the MVWDB board chair.

	F. Mileage Reimbursement
	1. Miles driven should be calculated using the representatives home address as the starting point and should exclude personal commute miles. Return trips should use the site of the MVWDB involved business as the starting point and the representatives ...
	2. The mileage reimbursement rate is calculated to assist with fuel costs as well as wear and tear on the automobile.
	3. The current GSA mileage per diem rate will be used https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/transportation-airfare-pov-etc/privately-owned-vehicle-pov-mileage-reimbursement-rates.
	4. A Google map showing actual miles must be submitted with the travel reimbursement form.

	G. Lodging
	1. If the event in question is hosted at a hotel, the negotiated conference rate may be acceptable but should be approved in advance by the MVWDB executive director or designee if the rate exceeds the GSA per diem rate for lodging. Tips and room servi...
	2. Representatives traveling on behalf of MVWDB may be reimbursed at the single room rate for the reasonable cost of hotel accommodations. Convenience, the cost of staying in the city in which the hotel is located, and proximity to other venues on the...
	3. Any lodging outside of the MVWA must be approved at least 14 days in advance by the executive director or designee.
	4. The specific location rate will be determined using the GSA rate and adhered to whenever possible. When the GSA rate cannot be followed written explanation of why will be required.

	H. Meals
	1. The costs of meals and refreshments are allowable with conditions. However, in accordance with the authorities cited above, costs can be incurred only when necessary and reasonable for the proper and efficient performance and administration of a gr...
	a. The reasonableness of the aggregate costs to demonstrate that Boards have acted with due prudence in circumstances, considering their responsibilities to the government unit, its employees, the public at large, and state or Federal Government.
	b. Aggregate costs periodically-e.g., over a 12-month period will be reviewed to identify needed changes to the policies in order to avoid incurring individual and aggregate costs that appear excessive or lavish.
	c. Tips are allowable up to 20%.
	d. No alcoholic beverages are permitted.
	e. All meal receipts must be itemized.
	f. Reasonableness of the cost of meals will be determined by comparing to the allowable GSA per diem rate for the specific area.

	2. Examples of when a reasonable need arises to incur such costs include, but are not limited to, the following:
	a. Allowable costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences where the primary purpose is the dissemination of technical information.
	b. Costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences are allowable when the grantee incurs such costs in the process of conducting meetings or conferences with external customers and other professional colleagues outside of the entity’...
	c. The cost of a “working lunch” with external customers and other colleagues is considered “reasonable and necessary” when there is adequate documentation on the reason of having the meeting during mealtime hours.


	I. Miscellaneous Reimbursements:
	1. Like all disbursements of WIOA funds, reimbursements should be adequately documented, reasonable, directly or indirectly allocable to one or more grants.
	2. Miscellaneous expenses are those deemed necessary in the conduct of the official business of the MVWDB, which are not included in the categories of mode of travel, lodging, mileage, and meals.
	a. All miscellaneous expenses shall be claimed under the column heading "miscellaneous expense" on the travel form and be supported by sufficient documentation.
	b. A receipt for each and every transaction involving miscellaneous expenditures shall be provided.
	c. Receipts are required for such things as:
	i. admission tickets
	ii. registration receipts
	iii. parking/taxi fees
	iv. stamp purchases
	v. supplies
	vi. telephone calls


	3. Some of the more common miscellaneous expenses are:
	a. Fax Copies - Expenses incurred to send or receive information via fax for business purposes shall be allowed. An actual receipt must be attached to the travel payment.
	b. Purchase of Supplies - The purchase of stationery and all other similar supplies shall be allowed in emergencies warranting their use for handling of official business on official travel and shall be submitted and certified on a travel payment with...
	c. Collision Damage Insurance - When renting an auto for MVWDB business, collision damage insurance paid to the auto rental company is an allowable expense. To receive reimbursement, the actual receipt must be attached to the travel claim.
	d. Laundry and Dry Cleaning - Reasonable laundry and dry-cleaning expense is allowed when the employee's travel exceeds five (5) working days. Actual receipt or documentation on the hotel bill must be attached to the travel claim when it is the hotel ...
	e. Internet Access - Internet access charges shall include an explanation for the business purpose on the claim.
	f. Cost of shuttle or Uber/Lyft services to and from the airport or the cost of airport parking
	g. Taxi services, Uber, Tolls, garage, and parking fees as a result of conducting WIOA business are reimbursable with receipt.


	J. Credit Card Usage
	1. MVWDB staff have the authority to use the MVWDB credit card while on business travel as long as the expenditures are within the guidelines outlined in this document and receipts are provided.
	2. Should receipts not be furnished to MVWDB the staff will reimburse MVWDB for the associated costs within 30 days. .
	3. When booking lodging, travel, conference fees, and other miscellaneous purchases, it may be necessary to use the MVWDB credit card. After written approval is received from the executive director for such expenses, the employee will be authorized to...
	4. It is imperative that the employee obtain a receipt at the time of purchase or at point of receiving the service.
	a. That receipt will be given to the Executive Director so he/she will be able to verify the credit card charges.
	b. Upon verification of all charges the executive director will include all receipts when submitting the credit card bill to the fiscal agent for payment requests.


	K. Travel Request Process and Procedure
	1. Expenses will not be reimbursed unless the representative requesting reimbursement submits a written Expense Report.
	2. The Expense Report, which shall be submitted at least monthly or within two weeks of the completion of travel, if travel expense reimbursement is requested, must include:
	a. The representatives name.
	b. If reimbursement for travel is requested, the date, origin, destination, and purpose of the trip, including a description of each MVWDB related activity during the trip.
	c. The name and affiliation of all people for whom expenses are claimed (i.e., people on whom money is spent in order to conduct MVWDB business.
	d. An itemized list of all expenses for which reimbursement is requested.

	3. Any delays in submission will cause delays in processing and timelines may be extended.
	4. Board chair/board staff will verify the travel expense form to receipts and approve for processing within 5 business days.
	5. Board staff will email travel expense form to the Fiscal Agent for processing.
	6. All travel expense form payments will be processed and paid by the Fiscal Agent within 30 days of receipt.

	L. Non-Reimbursable Expenditures
	1. MVWDB maintains a strict policy that expenses in any category that could be perceived as lavish or excessive will not be reimbursed, as such expenses are inappropriate for reimbursement under federal grants and a nonprofit, charitable organization.
	2. Expenses that are not reimbursable include, but are not limited to:
	a. Travel insurance.
	b. First class tickets or upgrades.
	c. Limousine travel.
	d. Movies, liquor, or bar costs.
	e. Spa or exercise charges.
	f. Clothing purchases.
	g. Valet service / car washes.
	h. Toiletry articles.
	i. Expenses for spouses, friends, or relatives.


	M. Personal Travel
	1. Representatives traveling on behalf of MVWDB may incorporate personal travel or business with their MVWDB related trips; however, personnel shall not arrange MVWDB travel at a time that is less advantageous to MVWDB or involving greater expense to ...
	2. Any additional expenses incurred as a result of personal travel, including but not limited to extra hotel nights, additional stopovers, meals or transportation, are the sole responsibility of the representative and will not be reimbursed by MVWDB.
	3. Expenses associated with travel of a representatives spouse, family or friends will not be reimbursed by MVWDB. When combining personal and business travel it should be clearly identified on the travel expense form required.

	N. Reasonable Accommodations
	1. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAAA)—as well as relevant state law—require employers to provide reasonable accommodations to allow qualified individuals with disabilities to perfor...


	Blank Page
	ADP6A8C.tmp
	Mississippi Valley

	Blank Page
	ADPC61B.tmp
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	ADPE827.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPDFF2.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP97EA.tmp
	Sheet1




